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Date:   December 8, 2017 

To:   All bidders 

Title:   Digital Creative Services 

Reference No.:  2017-RFP-61 

From:   Wei Chen (Tim), Purchasing Agent, ext. 3470 

 

Note: 

Niagara Region has determined that it is necessary to provide additional information 
relating to the above referenced Request for Proposal. 
 
This addendum forms an integral part of the above referenced Request for Proposal.  
Such addenda may contain important information, including significant changes to the 
above referenced Request for Proposal. 
 
In the Form of Proposal (Appendix B), bidders should confirm their receipt of all 
addenda by setting out the number of each addendum in the space provided. 

Addendum No. 1 

Questions and Answers 

Q1. Was a design agency used to assemble this RFP and are they eligible to 
win the contract? 

 
A1. No, a design agency was not used to assemble to RFP.  
 
Q2. Were the 4 websites developed by an external agency and are they eligible 

to win the contract? 
 
A2. Both www.niagaracanada.com and www.niagaraimmigrationportal.ca were built 

by an external vendor a few years ago using a custom CMS. – This vendor may 
choose to bid on the project. 

 www.nftz.ca was built internally as a temporary solution, using WordPress. 
 www.whyniagara.ca has not been built yet.  
 
Q3. Our firm is preparing a submission in response to the Request for 

Proposals (2017-RFP-61). In order to accurately estimate hosting costs, 
could you provide us with a ballpark figure for traffic to your existing web 
properties over the past 12 months? Specifically, for: 

 

http://www.niagararegion.ca/
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Niagara Economic Development – www.niagaracanada.com 
Niagara Immigration Portal – www.niagaraimmigration.ca 
Niagara Foreign Trade Zone – www.nftz.ca 
Why Niagara? – www.whyniagara.ca 

 
A3. Currently web visitation is low. 
 

Niagara Economic Development – www.niagaracanada.com – 1000 / month 
Niagara Immigration Portal – www.niagaraimmigration.ca - No data. 
Niagara Foreign Trade Zone – www.nftz.ca - No data 
Why Niagara? – www.whyniagara.ca – No data.  
 
We expect to have a minimum of 2000 sessions per month, per website. 

 
Q4. Can you please clarify what is meant by “concept and design of a stand-out 

promotional item” in sections 3.1.g/3.2.a/3.3.a on page 2 under “Build and 
design marketing collateral”? 

 
A4. We would like to work with the Successful Proponent to choose a promotional 

item and have it designed to be print ready. The cost of the promotional item will 
be paid for by the Region outside of this RFP. 

 
Q5. What is the approval process for digital creative services?  Is there a single 

point of contact/point person representing various stakeholders? 
 
A5. There will be a single point of contact from the Region – who will represent 

multiple stakeholders. Approvals will be in writing (email) 
 
Q6. Is there a separate budget for research? 
 
A6. There is no separate budget for research. Please keep in mind that we have a 

team who can support with research as required and much research has already 
been done. Additional research required will be at the expense of the 
municipality.  

 
Q7. Can the point about “Please indicate if you area also bidding on Project – 

Professional photography, videography and Digital Editing Services?  Is 
there a separate RFP for these services? 

 
A7. The Niagara Region is currently seeking service providers to update select 

websites, creating marketing collateral, and create professional video / 
photography content. For more details, please download our Request for 
Proposal documents at the link below.  

 
https://www.niagararegion.ca/business/tenders/default.aspx  
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(2017-RFP-61 | Due Dec 14, 2017) - Creative Services 
(2017-RFP-62 | Due Dec 14, 2017) - Video and Photography 

 
Q8. Do you anticipate any significant change to the number of pages found on 

the websites you would like redesigned and developed?  Should we use 
current website size for quotation purposes? 

 
A8. We believe that we will require many more pages than currently exist. Part of the 

RFP will be for monthly updates with new content on a scheduled basis. Videos 
and success stories along with marketing content will be added to the websites 
on a fixed monthly schedule.  
Estimate: 
NED: 50-75 Pages  
Immigration Portal: 75-100 Pages  
NFTZ: 15 - 20 Pages 
Why Niagara?: 100+ Pages (over 24 months) 

 
Q9. How many hours are spent monthly in support of your current websites?  

This will provide some direction for preparation of maintenance estimates. 
  
A9. We currently do not schedule updates on our existing websites so there is no 

baseline for comparison. However, going forward, as many as 40+ hours per 
month will be devoted to this internally. 

 
Q10. What are the requirements of the custom analytic reports? 
 
A10. We hope to develop the custom analytics reports with the Successful Proponent. 

Essentially, we would like a one window approach to view KPI;s on each website 
that include Traffic statistics, search keywords, CTR, Conversion Rate, CPC 
(paid ads), etc. Custom reports can be web based or using API’s that can pull all 
data into excel - daily. We will work with the Successful Proponent to develop the 
appropriate reporting tools.  

 
Q11. What level of training do you require? What format is required for these 

training materials (user guides, video tutorials)? 
 
A11. Training should include steps to edit website and access information, including all 

links, user names, passwords – steps to modify content and view reporting 
information should be included. 

 
Q12. How much traffic do your current sites get each month? 
 
A12. We currently get a low volume of traffic. We would like to have a minimum of 

2000 sessions per month, per website. 
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Q13. What type of security are you looking for? SSL Certificates? Or something 
more advanced? 

 
A13. SSL is sufficient 
 
Q14. Please clarify what you mean by “Websites must be able to share identified 

open source data if requested”? 
 
A14. We would like to have that ability to share date with https://niagaraopendata.ca. 

As an example, we may wish to have the immigration web portal analytics posted 
in a similar fashion to https://niagaraopendata.ca/dataset/niagara-region-website-
statistics  - we may also wish to pull open data such as 
https://niagaraopendata.ca/dataset/niagara-region-events-calendar 

 
Q15.  As part of the hosting requirements, you mention access to secure email. 

Are you moving all emails to the new host? If so, how many are there? Are 
you open to using a cloud hosted solution such as Google Apps? 

 
A15. We do not require access to secure Email as part of this RFP. Please disregard 

Access to Secure Email as part of the requirements. 
 
Q16.  Page 2 – 3.1A – in regards to “newsletter”, are you looking for us to 

produce physical newsletter, e-newsletter, or both? 
 
A16. Digital. We are open to various platforms, technology, distribution methods. 
  
Q17. “Promotion item” – can you please clarify what kind of promotional items 
 
A17. We would like to work with the Successful Proponent to choose a promotional 

item and have it designed to be print ready. The cost of the promotional item will 
be paid for by the Region outside of this RFP. 

  
Q18.  Website development – does the website require translation (i.e. French?) 
 
A18. All websites will all be English Only. 
 
Q19.  “Access to secure e-mail” – can you please clarify? Is this referring to 

intranet or just encryption of e-mails? 
 
A19.  We do not require access to secure Email as part of this RFP. Please disregard 

Access to Secure Email as part of the requirements. 
 
Q20.  What type of content are you looking for on a monthly basis? Blog posts? 
 
A20. We would like annual hosting costs to include monthly updates and support.  
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Updates can be in the form of writing new Blog posts, uploading new Video 
Content (supplied by Region), Updated Stats (supplied by Region), Success 
Stories, Links to News articles (supplied by Region) – etc. 
 
We would also like to apply fixed and updates to the website as required. Using 
analytical data we may also wish move content or update the site map to improve 
user flow. 
 
 (an example of the types of blog posts below (examples only): 
 
1) Top 10 reasons to Live in the Niagara Region 
2) Top 10 reasons to work in Niagara Region 
3) Top 10 reasons to Invest in the Niagara Region 
4) Top 10 reasons to start a business in The Niagara Region 
5) Top 10 reasons to re-locate your business to the Niagara Region 
6) Top 10 reasons to expand to the Niagara Region 
7) Top 10 reasons to study in the Niagara Region 
8) Top 10 reasons to Immigrate to the Niagara Region  
9) Top 10 reasons to buy a home in the Niagara Region 
10) Top 10 festivals and events in Niagara Region 
11) Top 10 Free things to do in the Niagara Region 
12) Why are people moving to Niagara? 
13) Why is Niagara the Wine Capital of Canada? 
14) Why is Niagara important for International Trade? 
15) How To immigrate to Niagara Region 
16) How to start a small business in Niagara Region 
17) How to find a job in the Niagara region 
18) How to get around in the Niagara Region 
 
The Successful Proponent will be working directly with a single point of contact  
from within the Region. This point of contact will also be responsible to making  
updates along side the chosen proponent and will be a vital resource.  

 
Q21. Automobile insurance – why is this necessary? 
 
A21. It is a general standard. If the chosen proponent requires the use of a vehicle to 

transport people or equipment, proof of insurance needs to be provided.  Proof of 
automobile insurance will not be required if the Supplier provides a signed letter 
stating that they do not own or lease vehicles. 

 
Q22.  What is your general insurance so high? 
 
A22.  This is a municipal Standard. 
 
Q23.  References – is written references sufficient? 
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A23.  Yes. 
 
Q24.  What kind of monthly maintenance are you looking for? 
 
A24. Please refer to Answer #20 
 
Q25. Do you need an overall brand for all four projects? 
 
A25. We are not looking to “Rebrand” each digital asset but rather ensure all assets 

share a common identity with clear branding guidelines (colours, logos, 
templates, documents). Understanding each product group is unique yet they 
need to be uniform and clearly part of the Region.  Why Niagara will require 
branding and logo. The Why Niagara site is a new build where the others are re-
builds. 

 
Q26. Are you looking for one website portal for all four projects – or are you 

looking for updated branding on those individual sites? 
 
A26. We are looking for individual websites that each speak to their target audience 

but all together answer “Why Niagara” to everyone. The working concept is to 
have www.WhyNiagara.ca will be the home of video and content that will support 
NED, NFTZ, and Immigration portal. #WhyNiagara. It will supplement each site 
with shared content and be a gateway to engage with people and. We wish to 
pixel site visitors and retarget them with specific brands depending on the 
content they engage with. 
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Q27. Is your timeline set? 
 
A27. Timeline for NFTZ product group is fixed due to funding and must be complete 

before March 31, 2018. Other assets have a bit more flexibility with NED website 
no later than end of April 30th, 2018 and Immigration portal no Later than June 
1st 2018. Why Niagara? has much more flexibility.  

 
Q28.  Do you have hosting set up already? 
 
A28. We have hosting set up temporarily on existing sites but will migrate all hosting 

over to a single source as part of this RFP. 
 
Q29. Will the chosen firm be responsible for developing content for the 

following: 
a. Four websites: Niagara Economic Development, Niagara Immigration 
Portal, Niagara Foreign Trade Zone, Why Niagara/ 
b. All the marketing collateral listed in the RFP 
 

A29. Much content has been compiled but it is in text form or simply a concept. Draft 
wire frames, site maps, and content documents will be provided to the 
Successful Proponent. The Successful Proponent will need to take the concepts 
and content and use that to create graphics, animations, charts, and written copy 
to support each product group while making marketing collateral and websites – 
keeping an eye on consistency across all product groups. 

 
Q30.  One other question regarding pricing . I noticed that on page 7 under 

“Work Plan” it states to include the “costs associated with each phase” yet 
on page 9 under 1.8.3 it states that pricing should be in a separate 
envelope marked “Pricing Envelope” and at Stage IV – Pricing is evaluated 
after Stage III - Interviews.   If the intention is to keep pricing confidential 
until after the proposal evaluation, should costs be included as part of the 
work plan section in the proposal?  Please confirm.  

 
A30. In the work plan, Please do not disclose the price. Please include it separately as 

indicated on page 9, section 1.8.3. Please use the pricing table as indicated in 
Appendix C – Pricing Form, to outline the costs associated with each phase of 
the project.  
 
Please indicate how you would like the budget to be allocated to you as part of 
your work plan, as a percentage (%). 

 
Q31. Section 1.8.4. Proposal Submission Content - What is the difference 

between 8 & 9 (Background & Experience - Examples of Work)? Are you 
looking for a total of eight examples of work to be shown in our portfolio? 
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A31.  Your background and experience can also be your examples of work, but it does 
not have to be. We are not looking for eight samples of work But rather a general 
snapshot of your experience, achievements and your four best examples of work 
that closely align with our project. 

 
Q32. Do all the websites require translation into the languages identified on 

Page 27, No. 7? i.e. French, German, Spanish, standard Chinese 
(Mandarin), Arabic, Punjabi, Farsi, Urdu, Tagalog, Italian 

 
A32. All website will be in English only. The only items that need to be translated are 

addressed in Appendix D, 7. Translation and Editing. 
 
Q33. What amount of web traffic does each website typically get on a monthly 

basis? 
 
A33. Please refer to Answer #3 
 
Q34. Can you tell us your expectation on how much of the content from the 3 

existing websites will be carried over into the new sites, and how much of 
the content for these 3 sites do you expect to be new? 

 
A34. Some of the content will be carried over. Either in its original state or with 

updated information. The site structure, and layout will change considerably and 
new content needs to be designed for consistency.  We would like to have a 
website that can take both old and new content and reduce the text with 
graphics, images, and charts. We feel the existing sites are too text heavy and 
the user experience can be enhanced. 

 
Q35. What are your expectations around the size, scope and functionality of the 

newly created "Why Niagara" website? 
 
A35. Please refer to Answer #26 
 
Q36. Is the site finder website included in the scope of this RFP? 
 
A36. Site Finder is not part of this RFP and does not need any maintenance, tools or 

support. 
 
Q37. Who would be responsible for monthly updates and support mentioned on 

page 27, No. 8? Is this part of the 1 year hosting costs? 
 
A37. We would like annual hosting costs to include monthly updates and support. The 

Successful Proponent will be working directly with a single point of contact  
from within the Region.  
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Q38. Is your expectation that the Strategy/Communications Plan (Page 25, No. 1) 
will project beyond the year identified for this RFP? 

 
A38. Yes, and we would like an option to continue working with the Successful 

Proponent beyond this initial RFP. 
  
Q39. Outside of creating the Strategy/Communication Plan, can we assume that 

the implementation of the plan, and associated actionable items that spill 
out of the Communication Plan are not part of this budget (except those 
you would carry out in-house)? 

 
A39. The implementation of the strategy in terms of branding, copy writing, design, 

website development, analytical tools, marketing collateral, Etc. are all within the 
budget for this RFP. Other forms of implementation (as an example, digital 
advertising costs) are outside of this Initial RFP and will be the responsibility of 
the region. 

 
Q40. Will the written content for the website(s) be provided by Niagara Region? 

These services are requested from the vendor for marketing collateral, but 
we are unclear about how the content for the website(s) will be provided. 

 
A40. Please refer to Answer #34 
 
Q41. If the content from the website(s) will be provided by Niagara Region from 

the current websites listed in the RFP, what CMS is being used for each 
site? Can the current content be provided in a .csv format, along with a 
copy of all media/images (zipped folder) so that we can easily import it into 
the new website(s)? 

 
A41. The existing CMS is an out of date with limited functionality. We will provide the 

selected Successful Proponent with the images and data as they exist, 
recognizing that we really do not want a repeat of what we already have. 

 
Q42. For the content/copywriting for marketing collateral outlined in the RFP, 

will the key messages, research and statistics be provided to our team by 
Niagara Region, or will we be developing all content (including performing 
research) from scratch? 

 
A42. All research and statistics will be provided by the Niagara Region. We will supply 

content “as is” with an expectation that it can be formed into a well designed and 
consistent websites with marketing collateral that is print ready, easy to read and 
understand. Key messages have been attempted but we require a marketing and 
design company to complete the work. 

 
Q43. Two of the four current web URLs go to the same destination: a. Niagara 

Economic Development – www.niagaracanada.com and d. Why Niagara? – 
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www.whyniagara.ca. Can you clarify why they are listed as separate 
websites/product groups? 

 
A43. Whyniagara.ca does not yet exist. We would like to develop this website to help 

answer the question “why Niagara” (Work, Live, Study, Invest).  Please also refer 
to Answer #26 for more details as to the working concept of WhyNiagara?. 

 
Q44. And for ease, I'm including our initial question from Nov 30th here as well: 

In order to accurately estimate hosting costs, could you provide us with a 
ballpark figure for traffic to your existing web properties over the past 12 
months? 

 
A44. Please refer to answer #3 
 
Q45. The document notes that interviews will likely take place Jan. 9-11. When 

will the successful proponents who will move on to the interview stage be 
informed that they will be taking part in this stage and be notified of the 
specific date and time of the interview? 

 
A45. Ideally, the selected proponent will be contacted on or before December 22nd, 

2017 with a request to participate in the second round and will schedule a time 
that works within those dates. Please be aware that there is some flexibility in 
those dates, however we would like to keep as close to those days as possible. 

 
Q46. Page 2 Item 3.1 h. (QNTY 1) - Explanatory powerpoint presentation - this 

conflicts with Appendix D, Page 27, Item 7, 4th bullet point - states (QNTY 
2) Explanatory Powerpoint Presentations. Please clarify which quantity is 
correct, 1 or 2 Explanatory Powerpoint Presentations? 

 
A46. There are two (2) Explanatory PowerPoint Presentations.  

1) Niagara Canada (NED) – 3.1h 
2) Niagara Foreign Trade Zone (NFTZ) – 3.3c 

 
Q47. Appendix D, Section A - Deliverables and Detailed Scope of Work, #1, 

Strategic Planning: it is noted that the strategy developed will include a 
budget.  What is the amount of the budget that the agency will be required 
to detail/allocate as part of the strategic planning process? 

 
A47. We will work with the selected Successful Proponent and share our 2018 budget 

and guidance for advertising purposes. We will then work the strategy to align 
with the budget for implementation. 

 
Q48. Appendix D, Section A - Deliverables and Detailed Scope of Work, #1, 

Strategic Planning: it is noted that the strategy developed should include a 
SWOT analysis, target audiences, key products and key messages. Some 
of this work appears to have been completed in the report provided and 
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appearing on pages 102-104 (SWOT), and 120-126 (target audiences and 
key messages). Although this work does not cover all four product groups, 
should we assume that the applicable work completed to date is to be 
utilized/incorporated in this strategy? 

 
A48. Much research has been done in this respect. What will be required is to tie it all 

together into 1 plan. 
 

Pages 102-104 (swot) and 120-126 (target audience and key messages) is 
specifically referencing NiagaraCanada.com. Please be aware that NFTZ and 
Immigration portal have different audiences but all need to be incorporated into a 
fulsome strategy. All of this work is to be include in the strategy along with the 
other materials provide as reference, such as the Global Attractiveness study.  
 
Please refer to Answer #26 for additional details.  
 

Q49. Appendix D, Section A - Deliverables and Detailed Scope of Work, #7, 
Translation: for pricing purposes, is a range acceptable at this point with a 
condition that final pricing is subject to review when final artwork is 
completed for these items? Although specifications on size and pages are 
provided, translation services are usually priced based on word count/final 
layout, which are not available at this time. 

 
A49. Yes, you may provide a range with an expected cost, but please also provide the 

cost per word as well as an upper and lower limit for your expectations of cost. 
 
Q50. WEBSITE DEVELOPMENT/LAUNCH TIMING: Development time from 

project start to launch of first site is very short considering the branding 
work/content development that needs to be completed in advance of the 
site builds. Do launch dates have any flexibility? Also, for efficiency, can 
launch timelines for all sites be aligned? 

 
A50. Launch of NFTZ.ca is of vital importance to be complete prior to March 31, 2017. 

There is little flexibility here. It is also the smallest of the 3 product groups. Other 
launches have some flexibility, however all sites must be launched prior to June 
1 2017. We will work with the selected Successful Proponent to firm up timing. In 
order of important and timing the product groups should be ranked in this order.  
1) NFTZ 
2) Niagara Canada 
3) Niagara immigration Portal 
4) WhyNiagara 

 
Because we are hoping for monthly updates, there is flexibility to deliver on 
content throughout the year as well as overall site upgrades as we go, however, 
the overall structure and a key content to support the brand must be in place 
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within the timelines. We can discuss with the chosen proponent an alternative 
scheduled If the website needs to be upgraded and updated in stages. 

 
Q51. WEBSITE SITE SELECTION TOOL: Can you confirm that the site selector 

tool on niagaracanada.com will remain 'powered by' the third party GIS 
Planning's Zoom Prospector tool and embedded in the niagaracanada.com 
site via I-frame or other integration, and that any fees related to this tool(s) 
and/or maintenance of this tool(s) are not included in the scope of this 
RFP? 

 
A51. Please see Answer #36. 
  
Q52. WEBSITE LANGUAGES: Can you confirm the implementation of Google 

Translate tool on the site is the only translation expectation for web 
content and that no custom translation services are required? 

 
A52. All website will be in English only and there is to be no use of an automated 

translation tool. 
  
Q53. WEBSITE CONTENT UPDATES: Can you confirm that the ‘updates’ 

required to the website on a fixed schedule (monthly for a one year period) 
are based on content supplied by NED (new content, videos and other 
assets)? Given the scope of these updates is unknown, can we provide a 
recommended monthly budget allocation for these updates? Given the 
website will be built on a content management system, will NED staff 
undertake any content maintenance on the site during this period? 

 
A53. Please refer to Answer #20. 
  
Q54. WEBSITE PRINT OPTIMIZATION – Both niagaracanada.com and 

niagaraimmigration.ca currently feature print buttons in the header. Is 
optimization of the website for print a requirement? 

 
A54. No. 
 
Q55. SOCIAL MEDIA ACCOUNTS: Is the expectation that there will be one social 

media account for each Product Group for each social media platform (ie. 4 
Product Groups x 3 Social Media Accounts = 12 total accounts), or can 
these be consolidated based on commonality of content/audiences etc.? 

 
A55. Yes, 12-16 social media accounts will need to be created. But we can discuss 

with the winning proponent other alternatives. 
 
Q56. SOCIAL MEDIA MANAGEMENT: Can you confirm that the scope of this RFP 

does not include any content development or management of social media 
channels beyond the basic set up of the accounts? 
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A56. Correct. The region will remain responsible to all social media after the basic set 

up, under guidance from the Marketing Strategy that has been developed 
 

We would like some content developed on our website and deployed on a 
monthly basis to assist with our social media strategy.  

 
Q57. Timing, if the RFP selection/award timetable shifts, does that mean the 

work schedule will shift accordingly? 
 
A57. Please refer to Answer #50 
 
Q58. Timing, would there be flexibility with the overall timeline for deliverables if 

more time allowed us to deliver more value? 
 
A58. Please refer to Answer #50 
 
Q59. Branding, do you require a new visual identity for each product? (ie - logo, 

colours). 
 
A59. 1) NFTZ – (Finalize logo, colours to match Region of  

2) Niagara Canada – No new logo – Colours to match region of Niagara 
3) Niagara immigration Portal – Use existing logo and Region of Niagara 
4) WhyNiagara – Requires a logo using Region of Niagara colours 

 
Q60. Do the websites require professional translations, or would you be 

comfortable with an automated, third-party tool like Google Translate? 
 
A60. Were identified, all translations must be professional quality translations. No 

automated or google translations. Only select PDF and print ready materials, as 
identified in Appendix D, Section 7, need to be translated. All websites will be in 
English only. 

 
Q61. Do you require proponents to set up an email server and host email on it? 

Or do you just need us to ensure that email is delivered securely through 
the website to your existing server/addresses? 

 
A61. No email hosting required. 
 
Q62. Is whyniagara.ca to be a unique product, or will it continue to redirect to 

niagaracanada.com as it does now 
 
A62. It is to be a unique product. Please refer to Answer #26 for more details.  
 
Q63. Do the websites have to be built on WordPress, or would other non-

proprietary, commercially-available options be considered? 
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A63. Ideally, we would prefer the sites built using WordPress. 
 
Q64. Page 2 of RFP asks for "Full Reactive". Does this mean: 

a. Full Reactive Stack 
b. ReactJS or  
c. Fully responsive 
If the answer is a. or b., are you 100% committed to those technologies? 

 
A64. Essentially, we would like a website that has the ability to react to any size 

screen and adjust the menu as required for different devices. The technology 
used to make this happen is less important than the overall function. 

 
Q65. Content development is included in the budget allocation.  Does this 

include all copy for the websites and collateral pieces? If specific 
information is required (example statistics) who is responsible for sourcing 
this information? 

 
A65. There is no separate budget for research. Research, such as stats, facts, figures, 

and information required to create the copy for websites and marketing materials 
will be provided by the Region of Niagara. Much of this work has already been 
done. Anything additional that we need will be the responsibility of the Niagara 
Region. 

 
Q66. Are the timelines flexible? As outlined, having strategy and concepts 

completed by March 15th with the first site launching March 31st is 
unrealistic. 

 
A66. Please refer to Answer # 50 

 
Q67. Is the budget firm? Translation, editing and layout of the various support 

pieces could represent quite a large range of time depending on page 
count. 

 
A67. The budget is firm. You may provide a range with an expected cost, but please 

also provide the cost per word as well as an upper and lower limit. 
 
Q68. Examples of work. The RFP asks the respondent to provide examples of 

work from four (4) previous clients from established private firms or 
government agencies, (two (2) private and two (2) government preferred). 
Our question is can a non-for-profit organization be classified as a 
government example of work. Please clarify what government example 
does and does not include. 

  
A68. For the sake of this RFP, Government may include any professional organization 

that is managed by a board of directors or council, such as non-profit 
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corporations, associations, charities, provincial or federal agencies, 
municipalities, or first nations.  

 
Q69. Under the work plan requirements there is a mention of costs associated 

with each phase. And in the Appendix D under the methodology there is a 
mention of budget break down. And in Appendix C there is a pricing form.  
We are a little unclear on the expectation here for budget details First off, 
are we to provide pricing in the the Work Plan section of the RFP. Second, 
do these line items align with pricing form in Appendix C. Third, if they are 
different are you looking for a quarterly breakdown or a line by line budget 
breakdown in the work plan? Please clarify the requirements for budget 
breakdown in the RFP. 

 
A69. Please refer to Answer #30 
 
Q70. Given the wide scope of services sought after in both the Digital 

Photo/Video and Creative Services RFPs, will one vendor be selected for 
each complete RFP, or is it possible that multiple vendors may be selected 
for different deliverables within each RFP? 

 
A70. There are currently 2 RFP’s  

https://www.niagararegion.ca/business/tenders/default.aspx  
(2017-RFP-61 | Due Dec 14, 2017) - Creative Services 
(2017-RFP-62 | Due Dec 14, 2017) - Video and Photography 

 
The individual components within Each RFP will not be broken down separately 
and handed out to multiple proponents. 
 
One Successful Proponent will be chosen for each RFP. It is possible that one 
Proponent may be successful in being awarded both RFP’s both, but only if that 
potential proponent is successful at achieving the best individual score for each 
RFP. 

 
Q71. For instance, there may be one vendor best-suited for translation and 

another best-suited for the design work itself. Once vendor may be best 
suited for video, and another for photo. 

 
A71. The goal is to find the Proponent that is best suited for websites and the best 

Proponent suited for video. It would be ideal if we could find one Proponent that 
can do everything but we are not willing to sacrifice quality for convenience. Each 
potential bidder is encouraged to put forward the best submission possible to 
deliver on all tasks. 

 
If a potential bidder needs to support their service team with sub contractors, for 
portions of the work to complete the project (such as translation) that is 
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completely acceptable, as long as those outsourced components are identified 
as part of the bid requirements. 

 
Q72. Will a preference be given to vendors that can complete all work in all RFPs 

in-house? 
 
A72. Preference will be given to the best overall team to deliver on each individual 

RFP. In house vs sub contractors is less important than the overall quality of the 
team. 
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